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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION

RAGS TO RICK PRODUCTIONS INC.

Plaintiff

v.

OWN LLC

Defendant

Case No:

Plaintiff Rags to Rick Productions Inc. (“Productions”), by and through its undersigned

counsel, upon knowledge as to itself and its own acts, hereby brings this action against

Defendant OWN LLC ("OWN"), and alleges as follows:

NATURE OF THE CASE

1. Productions brings this action for trademark infringement, deceptive trade

practices, and unfair competition against OWN for the unauthorized and deceptive use of

Productions' trademarks used in connection with Productions' reality entertainment program.

OWN’s wrongful misappropriation of Productions' trademarks are likely to lead to confusion,

mistake, and deception among members of the consuming public as to the source, origin,

sponsorship or affiliation of OWN’s new reality entertainment program, thus infringing on

Productions' trademarks.

THE PARTIES

2. Productions is a Canadian corporation with a principal place of business at 125

Don Hillock Drive, Unit #2, Aurora, Ontario, Canada L4G 0H8.
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3. OWN is a Delaware limited liability company with its principal place of business

at 5700 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 120, Los Angeles, California, United States 90036.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction under 15 U.S.C. § 1121 and 28 U.S.C.

§§ 1331, 1332, 1338 and 1367, in that this is a civil action involving claims arising under the

laws of the United States, including an Act of Congress relating to trademarks, as well as claims

between a citizen of a state of the United States and a citizen of foreign state, and wherein all

other claims are so related to claims within the Court’s original jurisdiction that they form part of

the same case or controversy.

5. This Court has personal jurisdiction over OWN on the grounds that (a) OWN is

doing business and/or transacting business within the State of Illinois out of which Productions'

causes of actions arise; and (b) OWN has committed, and is continuing to commit acts of

trademark infringement and unfair competition in the State of Illinois.

6. Venue is proper within this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(c)

because OWN transacts business in this judicial district, is subject to personal jurisdiction and/or

has substantial contacts within this judicial district.

FACTS

Productions and Its Trademarks

7. Productions is a production company that engages in the production and

distribution of reality-based entertainment programming.

8. Productions has produced a reality entertainment program titled WING-MEN that

features the life of Rick Smiciklas, an entrepreneur with little to his name when he opened his

first chicken wing restaurant in 1999, who now owns a chain of chicken wing restaurants with

over 100 locations (the "Productions Program Series").
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9. The pilot of the Productions Program Series premiered on December 5, 2013, on

the internet, and is still available to be viewed online throughout the United States, including

within this judicial district.

10. Since the pilot's premiere, Productions has continued its production of the

Productions Program Series. Productions is preparing to release the first of the yet to be aired

episodes on the internet.

11. Productions is also in talks with networks in the United States regarding television

broadcast of the Productions Program Series.

12. Since at least as early as December 2013, and prior to the commencement of

OWN’s infringing acts, Productions has used the mark WING-MEN as the title of its

Productions Program Series, as well as using the marks WING-MEN and WINGMEN (the

"WINGMEN Marks") in connection with promotional activities for the Productions Program

Series.

13. In addition to owning Canadian Trademark Applications for the marks

WINGMEN and WING-MEN, Productions also has filed two United States Trademark

Applications, Serial No. 86/278502 and Serial No. 86/367646, for the marks WINGMEN and

WING-MEN (the "WINGMEN Filings").

14. The WINGMEN Filings were filed for "[p]roviding entertainment information

about a television program, namely a reality-based television show via the internet;

entertainment services in the form of television program, namely, a reality-based television

show; the production of a television program namely a reality-based television show" and "[p]re-

recorded media namely DVD's, downloadable programs and video tapes concerning a reality-

based television show."

15. Productions also controls the following Internet domain names:
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Domain Name Registration Date

wing-men.com December 19, 2012

wingmentv.com November 25, 2013

wingmen.ca November 25, 2013

best-wing-men.com November 25, 2013

bestwingmen.ca November 25, 2013

16. Productions uses the website located at wing-men.com to promote the

Productions Program Series under the WING-MEN mark, as illustrated by the true and correct

copies of the website homepage in Exhibit A.

17. Thus, Productions has continuously used the WINGMEN Marks in commerce in

the United States in connection with its Productions Program Series and the promotion thereof to

identify the source of the Productions Program Series, thereby distinguishing it from the goods

and services of others.

18. In addition, Productions has invested significant resources in promoting its

Productions Program Series under the WINGMEN Marks in the United States via the Internet,

itself and through public relations agencies.

19. Through uninterrupted and continuous promotion and use, the WINGMEN Marks

have come to be associated with Productions and identify Productions as the source of the

Productions Program Series offered in connection with the WINGMEN Marks.

OWN’s Wrongful Acts

20. OWN is in the business of entertainment television, and broadcasts entertainment

programming, including, related programming, via its television network known as OWN: Oprah

Winfrey Network.

21. On July 9, 2014, in a press release on its website, OWN announced the premiere

of a scripted entertainment program on its network, also titled WINGMEN, which features two

best friends and their "small-town food truck business selling a revolutionary twist on a culinary
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classic: stuffed chicken wings" (the "OWN Program"). A true and correct copy of the press

release is in Exhibit B.

22. The press release describes the OWN Program as follows: "For these two best

friends, this isn't just another food trend, it's their meal ticket and chance to strike it rich.

'Wingmen' will follow the pair as they attempt to get their crazy business habits in order and

make their dreams of owning a million-dollar wing empire a reality."

23. The OWN Program is scheduled to air on August 16, 2014.

24. The OWN Program is titled, and promoted under the mark, WINGMEN.

25. OWN's use of the title WINGMEN for the OWN Program, and use of the

WINGMEN mark to promote same, is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception among

members of the public given that both the OWN Program and the Productions Program Series

are programs featuring the antics of entrepreneurs in the chicken wing business.

26. OWN's use of the mark WINGMEN has been without license, permission, or

authorization of Productions.

Injury to Productions

27. OWN’s use of the mark WINGMEN in connection with the OWN Program has

irreparably injured and, if permitted to continue, will irreparably injure Productions, its

WINGMEN Marks, and the public interest in being free from confusion.

28. OWN’s use of the WINGMEN mark in connection with its OWN Program is

likely to cause confusion, mistake, or to deceive as to the origin of the OWN Program, and is

likely to suggest falsely a sponsorship, connection, license or association of the OWN Program

with the Productions Program Series, thereby injuring Productions and the public.
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29. OWN’s adoption and use of the WINGMEN mark will have the result of

diverting potential viewers of the Productions Program Series under the identical and previously

established WINGMEN Mark.

30. Productions has been irreparably damaged and has no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT ONE

Federal Infringement of an

Unregistered Trademark and Unfair Competition Under

Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)

31. Productions repeats and realleges each and every allegation set forth in

Paragraphs 1 through 30 above as if fully set forth herein.

32. OWN’s actions specified above are likely to cause confusion, mistake, or

deception as to the source, origin, connection, sponsorship or approval of the OWN Program,

and thus constitute trademark infringement, false designation of origin, and unfair competition

with respect to the WINGMEN Marks, and is further likely to cause consumers to draw the false

impression that the OWN Program is authorized, endorsed or sponsored by Productions.

33. The actions of OWN have at all times relevant to this action been willful, in that

OWN could, by searching records at the United States and Patent Trademark Office or the

Canadian Intellectual Property Office, easily have learned of Productions' activities and the

existence of Productions' WINGMEN Marks and the fact that Productions has applied to register

these Marks in the United States and Canada, and have caused, and continue to cause, substantial

injury to Productions.

34. As a result of OWN's unlawful actions, Productions has been and will be

damaged and have suffered, and will continue to suffer, immediate and irreparable injury for

which Productions has no adequate remedy at law.
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35. OWN's conduct as described above constitutes the use in commerce of false

designations of origin, false or misleading descriptions of fact, or false and misleading

representations of fact in violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act of 1946, as amended, 15

U.S.C. § 1125(a).

COUNT TWO

Illinois Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act

36. Productions repeats and realleges each and avery allegation set forth in

Paragraphs 1 through 35 above as if fully set forth herein.

37. By the unauthorized acts specified above, OWN has engaged in unlawful and

unfair business practices that have injured and will continue to injure Productions in its business

and property, in violation of the Illinois Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act, 815 ILCS §§

510, et seq.

38. OWN has violated the Illinois Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act by causing

a likelihood of confusion or misunderstanding as to the source, sponsorship, approval, affiliation,

connection or association of its entertainment services, and engaging in conduct which creates a

likelihood of confusion or misunderstanding among the public.

39. OWN's unauthorized use of the WINGMEN mark in connection with the OWN

Program trades on the business reputation and goodwill of Productions.

40. The actions of OWN have at all times relevant to this action been willful, and if

not enjoined will continue to cause, irreparable and continuing harm to the WINGMEN Marks

and Productions' business, reputation and goodwill. Productions' has no adequate remedy at law

as money damages are inadequate to compensate Productions for the injuries caused by OWN.
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41. As a direct and proximate result of OWN's conduct alleged herein, OWN has

been unjustly enriched and should be ordered to disgorge any and all profits earned as a result of

such unlawful conduct.

COUNT THREE

Unfair Competition under Illinois Common Law

42. Productions repeats and realleges each and every allegation set forth in

Paragraphs 1 through 41 above as if fully set forth herein.

43. OWN misappropriated Productions' commercial advantage by using the

WINGMEN mark in commerce in connection with the promotion, marketing, or sale of

entertainment services likely to cause confusion or mistake with Productions' WINGMEN

Marks, or to deceive as to the source, affiliation, connection, association, or sponsorship of

OWN's entertainment services, namely, the OWN Program, in violation of the common law of

unfair competition of Illinois.

44. OWN could, by searching records at the United States and Patent Trademark

Office or the Canadian Intellectual Property Office, easily have learned of Productions' activities

and the existence of Productions' WINGMEN Marks and the fact that Productions has applied to

register these Marks in the United States and Canada, and in misusing the WINGMEN mark,

OWN acted knowingly, wantonly, in bad faith and with intentional disregard for the rights of

Productions.

45. The foregoing acts of OWN were done without justification and unfairly

benefiting OWN.

46. OWN's acts of unfair competition have caused, and will continue to cause

irreparable harm to Productions and the goodwill associated with the WINGMEN Marks, for

which Productions has no adequate remedy at law.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Productions prays that this Court enter judgment in its favor on each

and every claim for relief set forth above and award relief including, but not limited to, the

following:

A. That OWN be found to have engaged in acts of intentional and willful trademark

infringement.

B. That OWN, its officers, agents, servants, representatives, related entities,

employees, attorneys, successors or assigns, and all persons or entities acting in concert or

participation with it, be preliminarily and permanently enjoined from:

(1) Engaging in trademark infringement by the unauthorized use of any

WINGMEN Marks or any variations thereof or marks confusingly similar thereto on any

products or services, including, without limitation, using, registering or applying to register or

authorizing others to use, register or apply to register anywhere for any goods or services any

name, mark or domain name comprising or containing any WINGMEN Marks or any variations

thereof or marks confusingly similar thereto or dilutive thereof as a trademark, service mark,

trade name, business name, program name and/or domain name or in any social networking

account or location in a manner that in confusingly similar to or dilutive of Productions' rights;

(2) Engaging in any activities that represent, by any means whatsoever,

directly or indirectly, that OWN’s activities, actions, goods or services originate from, are

sponsored by, or are affiliated or connected with Productions in any way;

(3) Engaging in any other activity that will dilute Productions' rights to the

WINGMEN Marks or otherwise cause injury to Productions' reputation and goodwill; and

(4) Assisting, aiding or abetting any other person or business entity in

engaging or in performing any of the activities referred to in subparagraphs (1)-(3) above.
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C. That OWN be required to deliver to Productions for destruction all products,

merchandise, packaging, labels, catalogs, promotional materials, signage, brochures, and other

things possessed, used or distributed by OWN, or on its behalf, that depict, incorporate or bear

the WINGMEN Marks or any trademark confusingly similar to any WINGMEN Marks.

D. That OWN be required to remove all depictions or references to the WINGMEN

Marks or any other confusingly similar mark from all websites and other mediums related to

commercial activities owned, operated, or under the control of OWN.

E. That OWN be ordered to file with the Court and serve upon Productions a written

report under oath setting forth in detail the manner and form in which OWN has complied with

the injunction and judgment within thirty (30) days after the services of the injunction and

judgment upon OWN.

F. That OWN be required to reimburse Productions for its attorneys’ fees and costs,

of this civil action pursuant to the Lanham Act.

G. For such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

Dated: August 15, 2014 DENTONS US LLP

By: ________

Samuel Fifer

Tiffany L. Amlot

R. Cantrell Jones

Azi M. Lowenthal

samuel.fifer@dentons.com

tiffany.amlot@dentons.com

r.cantrell.jones@dentons.com

azi.lowenthal@dentons.com

233 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 7800

Chicago, IL 60606

Telephone: (312) 876-8000

Attorneys for Plaintiff Rags to Rick Productions Inc.
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